

# PUBLIC HEARING PROPOSED CHANGES TO

**Chapter 132Y-100 of the Washington Administrative Code (Traffic Rules)** 

Date and Time: Thursday, August 6, 2020, 9:30am

**Location:** Remote Hearing, via Zoom <a href="https://zoom.us/j/93568163596">https://zoom.us/j/93568163596</a>

9:30am Welcome & Call to Order

Gregory Hinton, Vice President, Finance and Operations

9:35am Summary of Proposed Changes to 132Y-100 WAC, Traffic Rules

Jade Jeter-Hill, Director, Safety, Security, Emergency Preparedness

9:50am Public Comment Period

Gregory Hinton, Jade Jeter-Hill

Public Comments will be heard on the topic of the proposed changes to Chapter 132Y-100 WAC - Traffic Rules only. Comments should be kept to 3 minutes each, and commenters will be asked to state their name.

Written comments on the topic of the proposed changes to Chapter 132Y-100 WAC - Traffic Rules may also be submitted to Jade Jeter-Hill <a href="jade.jeter-hill@edcc.edu">jade.jeter-hill@edcc.edu</a> no later than Thursday, August 6 at 11:30am. Written comments should not exceed 300 words, include the commenter's name, and include the words "Public Comment" in the email subject line.

11:30am Adjournment\*

Gregory Hinton

\*Meeting may be adjourned prior to 11:30am if there are no further comments from the public

Accommodations for attendees with disabilities can be provided when adequate notice is given.

If you would like to request an accommodation, please contact Cinda Lewis:

cinda.lewis@edcc.edu.



PROPOSED RULE MAKING OFFICE OF THE CODE REVISER STATE OF WASHINGTON FILED

DATE: May 20, 2020

**CODE REVISER USE ONLY** 

TIME: 8:38 AM

WSR 20-11-071

## **CR-102 (December 2017)** (Implements RCW 34.05.320)

Do NOT use for expedited rule making

Agency: Edmonds Community College							
☑ Original Notice							
□ Supplemental Notice to WSR							
☐ Continuance of WSR							
□ Preproposal Statement of Inquiry was filed as WSR 19-03-157; or							
□ Expedited Rule MakingProposed notice was filed as WSR; or							
□ Proposal is exempt under RCW 34.05.310(4) or 34.05.330(1); or							
□ Proposal is exempt under RCW							
Title of rule and other identifying information: (describe subject) Chapter 132Y-100 WAC Traffic rules.							
Hearing location(s):							
Date:	Time:	Location: (be specific)	Comment:				
August 6, 2020	9:30am- 11:30am	Edmonds College Mukilteo Hall Black Box Theater 20310 68th Avenue West Lynnwood, WA 98036	This meeting may take place remotely, if necessary due COVID-19 stay home orders and/or social distancing requirements.				
Date of intended ado	ption: Septe	ember 10, 2020 (Note: This is <b>NO</b>	T the effective date)				
Submit written comm	nents to:						
Name: Jade Jeter-Hill							
Address: 20000 68th A	Ave W, Lynn	wood, WA 98036-5999					
Email: jade.jeter-hill@	edcc.edu						
Fax:							
Other:							
By (date)							
Assistance for persons with disabilities:							
Contact Cinda Lewis							
Phone: 425-640-1411							
Fax:							
TTY:							
Email: cinda.lewis@edcc.edu							
Other:							
By (date): July 23, 2020							

Purpose of th	e proposal and its anticipated ef	fects, including any changes in existing rules	: These updates are			
meant to achieve three goals.						
	,,,,,,					
	2) To update and clarify rules regarding parking permits, and use of bicycle and foot propelled vehicles on pedestrian					
3) To en	walkways.  3) To ensure the college has the latitude to update policy and procedure as needed while maintaining good WAC					
oversi		Iministration anticipates that these proposed rule	s will provide quidance			
	isistency in traffic rules.	ininistration anticipates that these proposed rule.	s will provide guidance,			
,	,					
Statutory aut	hority for adoption: RCW 28B.50.	140(7), RCW 28B.50.140(10)				
Ctatuta baina	implemented: WAC 422V 400					
Statute being	implemented: WAC 132Y-100					
la mula massa						
	sary because of a:		□ Vaa			
Federal			☐ Yes ☒ No			
	Court Decision?		☐ Yes ⊠ No			
	ourt Decision?		☐ Yes ☒ No			
If yes, CITATION						
	nents or recommendations, if an	y, as to statutory language, implementation, e	enforcement, and fiscal			
matters:						
Name of prop	onent: (person or organization) Ed	lmonds College	□ Private			
riamo or prop	condition of organization, La	inionad delioge	□ Public			
			□ Governmental			
Name of ager	ncy personnel responsible for:					
rianic or ager		000	D.			
	Name	Office Location	Phone			
Drafting:	Jade Jeter-Hill, Director SSEPI	WWY 222	425-640-1877			
Implementatio	n:Jade Jeter-Hill, Director SSEPI	WWY 222	425-640-1877			
Enforcement:	Jade Jeter-Hill, Director SSEPI	WWY 222	425-640-1877			
ls a school di	strict fiscal impact statement rec	uired under RCW 28A 305 135?	☐ Yes ⊠ No			
	tatement here:	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	_ 100 _ 110			
11 you, 1110011 of	action on the form					
The public	may obtain a copy of the school dis	strict fiscal impact statement by contacting:				
Nam	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	strict ristal impact statement by contacting.				
Addı						
Pho						
Fax:						
TTY:						
Email:						
Other:						
Is a cost-benefit analysis required under RCW 34.05.328?						
, ,						
☐ Yes:	<ul> <li>Yes: A preliminary cost-benefit analysis may be obtained by contacting:</li> <li>Name:</li> </ul>					
Address:						
	Phone: Fax:					
rax:						

	TTY:						
	Email: Other:						
⊠ No		ency un	der RCW 34.05.328(5).				
Regulato	ory Fairness Act Cost Considerations for a Smal	I Busin	ess Economic Impact Statement:				
	proposal, or portions of the proposal, <b>may be exem</b> 19.85 RCW). Please check the box for any applicable						
adopted regulation adopted. Citation a		or regu th, and o	lations. Please cite the specific federal statute or describe the consequences to the state if the rule is not ethe agency has completed the pilot rule process				
☐ This r	rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt by a referendum.	•					
	rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt	under R	CW 19.85.025(3). Check all that apply:				
	RCW 34.05.310 (4)(b)		RCW 34.05.310 (4)(e)				
	(Internal government operations)		(Dictated by statute)				
	RCW 34.05.310 (4)(c)		RCW 34.05.310 (4)(f)				
	(Incorporation by reference)		(Set or adjust fees)				
	RCW 34.05.310 (4)(d)		RCW 34.05.310 (4)(g)				
	(Correct or clarify language)		((i) Relating to agency hearings; or (ii) process requirements for applying to an agency for a license or permit)				
□ Thio	rule prepagal or portions of the prepagal is exempt	under D	• ,				
	rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt ion of exemptions, if necessary:	under R					
If the pro	COMPLETE THIS SECTION O						
if the pro	posed rule is <b>not exempt</b> , does it impose more-than	n-minor	costs (as defined by RCW 19.85.020(2)) on businesses?				
new s □ Ye	ready existing WAC 132Y-100 Traffic rules. The pur sections do not impose any cost on businesses.	pose is	w costs were calculated. These sections are amending to clarify and update information in the existing rule. The nore-than-minor cost to businesses, and a small business				
	ne public may obtain a copy of the small business ec ntacting:	conomic	impact statement or the detailed cost calculations by				
Name: Address: Phone:							
	Fax:						
	TTY:						
	Email:						
	Other:						
	Signature:						
Date:	5/20/2020						
Name:	Mushka Rohani		Magan Rohani				
Title:	Executive Director of HR		1 (gyan Nonane				

- WAC 132Y-100-003 Definitions. For the purpose of this chapter, the following terms and definitions shall apply:
- (1) Board: The board of trustees of Edmonds (( $\frac{Community}{O}$ )) College, state of Washington.
- (2) Campus: Any or all real property owned, operated, controlled, or maintained by Edmonds ((Community)) College((, state of Washington)).
- (3) ((<del>Car pool</del>)) <u>Carpool</u>: Any group of two or more faculty, staff or students who commute to the college in the same vehicle.
- (4) College: Edmonds (( $\frac{Community}{Community}$ )) College or any additional community college hereafter established with Edmonds (( $\frac{Community}{Community}$ )) College, an agency of the state of Washington, and collectively, those responsible for its control and operations.
- (5) Faculty members: Any employee of Edmonds ((Community)) College who is employed on a full-time or part-time basis as a teacher, counselor, librarian or other position for which the training, experience, and responsibilities are comparable as determined by the appointing authority, including administrative appointment.
- (6) Foot propelled device: Wheeled devices including, but not limited to, skateboards, roller skates, roller blades, etc., designed or used for recreation and/or transportation purposes.
- (7) Security office: The <u>office designated for the</u> safety ((<del>and</del>)), security ((<del>department office</del>)) <u>and emergency preparedness department operations</u>.
- (8) Security officers: Employees of the college accountable to the ((vice president of finance and operations)) senior college security authority and responsible for campus safety, security, ((safety, and)) parking ((and)), traffic control, and emergency response and recovery.
- (9) Staff: The administrative and classified members employed by the college.
  - (10) Student: Any person enrolled in the college.
- (11) Vehicle: ((An)) A motorized automobile, truck, or motorcycle((, scooter or bicycle, both engine-powered and nonengine-powered)).
- (12) Visitor(s): Person(s) who come on campus as guest(s) or person(s) who lawfully visit the campus for purposes in keeping with the college's role as an institution of higher learning in the state of Washington that are neither employees nor registered students of the institution.

### AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 81-17-042, filed 8/14/81)

- WAC 132Y-100-004 Applicable traffic rules. The traffic rules which are applicable upon state lands devoted mainly to the educational activities of Edmonds ((Community)) College are as follows:
- (1) The motor vehicle and other traffic laws of the state of Washington; and
- (2) The traffic code of Lynnwood, Washington, and Snohomish County; and

[ 1 ] OTS-2051.5

(3) Rules set forth in chapter 132Y-100 WAC.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

WAC 132Y-100-008 Permits required for ((employee)) all vehicles ((in designated lots)) parked on campus. Except as provided in WAC 132Y-100-012 and 132Y-100-052 no ((employee)) person shall leave any vehicle unattended ((in a designated staff lot,)) on the college campus ((of the college,)) without a permit issued by the ((security of fice unless such employee is in the process of loading and unloading)) college.

Permits shall not be utilized by any person except by the person ((registered to said permit. The college reserves the right to deny any application, or to revoke any permit at any time, if actions resulting from such application or permission constitute present or imminent danger or unlawful activity, or if a prospective user has previously violated the provisions of these parking policies or other written rules or regulations of the college)) to whom the permit is registered. Outstanding parking fines must be paid before a parking permit may be issued or renewed.

Parking permits are transferable from vehicle to vehicle when used by the permit holder.

- ((If a vehicle is sold or traded, a new permit will be issued to the permit holder at no additional cost if the permit holder does the following:
  - (1) Records the invalid permit number; and
  - (2) Removes invalid permit; and
- (3) Brings invalid permit or remnant thereof and permit number to the security office. The security office shall then issue the permit holder a new parking permit.

Students and visitors may park in any lot not designated as staff or car pool, without a permit.))

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

WAC 132Y-100-012 Permit parking on campus. There are ((two)) three categories of valid permits:

- (1) A temporary permit authorized by the ((security office of Edmonds Community)) college and displayed in accordance with instructions; (( $\frac{1}{2}$ ))
- (2) A current vehicle permit issued by the (( $\frac{\text{security office}}{\text{office}}$ ))  $\frac{\text{college}}{\text{or}}$  and displayed on the vehicle in accordance with instructions;
- (3) A special permit issued by the senior college security authority or their designee and displayed on the vehicle in accordance with instructions. The special permit allows for parking in any legal parking spot. This permit is meant to be limited to those who need immediate access for college business that cannot be met by other means.

[ 2 ] OTS-2051.5

WAC 132Y-100-024 Right to refuse permit. The college reserves the right to refuse the issuance of a parking permit, or to revoke any permit at any time, if actions resulting from such application or permission constitute present or imminent danger or unlawful activity, or if a prospective user has previously violated the provisions of these parking policies or other written rules or regulations of the college.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

- WAC 132Y-100-028 Issuance of permits. ((\(\frac{(1)}{(1)}\)) All permits are issued by the security office or their designees. Permit procedures and requirements can be found at www.edcc.edu/safety. Presentation of valid college identification((\(\frac{\text{vehicle make, model, color, license number}\)) is required to be issued a <a href="mailto:current vehicle">current vehicle</a> permit.
- (((2) Employees may be issued a parking permit by the security office, upon registration of his/her vehicle with said office at the beginning of full-time employment.
  - (3) Part-time employees must obtain permits each quarter.
  - (4) Carpool permits are issued quarterly.
- (5) The security office may issue visitor parking permits when such permits are necessary.
- (6) Temporary and special permits may be issued by the security office when such permits are necessary to enhance the business operation of the college.)) Temporary visitor parking permits are coordinated through the security office or their designees. A special permit is issued by the senior college security authority or their designee.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

WAC 132Y-100-032 Display of permits. All ((permanent)) parking permits shall be displayed as provided in the directions supplied with the parking permit. ((A special or temporary parking permit shall be placed within the vehicle where it can be plainly seen from the outside of the driver's side of the windshield. Permits not displayed in accordance with the provisions of this section shall not be valid.)) Permits not displayed in accordance with the provisions of this section shall not be valid.

 $\underline{\text{AMENDATORY SECTION}}$  (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

WAC 132Y-100-066 Carpool parking permit. Carpool permits are available to ((staff and students who qualify. To qualify for a car-

[ 3 ] OTS-2051.5

pool permit, the individual must designate at least one other regular rider in addition to the driver. This permit must be renewed each quarter and allows the holder to park in designated carpool lots/areas. The permit can be obtained from the security office)) faculty, staff and students who qualify under college policy. College policies and procedures are available at edcc.edu/policies.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 92-09-055, filed 4/13/92, effective 5/14/92)

WAC 132Y-100-072 ((Handicapped)) Disabled parking. No vehicle shall park in a ((handicapped zone)) space designated for disabled persons without a current, valid, state issued ((handicapped)) disability permit. Enforcement of ((handicapped)) disability parking is accomplished by either the college (( $\frac{1}{1}$ ), or the city of Lynnwood.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 81-17-042, filed 8/14/81)

WAC 132Y-100-076 ((Disabled or)) Inoperative and abandoned vehicles. ((No disabled or inoperative vehicle shall be parked on the campus without permission from the security office. Vehicles which have been parked in excess of forty-eight hours and which appear to be inoperative or abandoned may be impounded and stored at the expense of either or both owner and operator thereof.)) Inoperative or abandoned vehicles may not be parked on the campus without permission from the senior college security authority or their designee. Vehicles parked in excess of forty-eight hours will be impounded and stored at the expense of the owner.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

WAC 132Y-100-080 Regulatory signs and directions. Edmonds ((Community)) College will erect and place signs, barricades, and other structures and paint marks and other directions upon the streets and roadways for the regulation of traffic and parking upon state lands devoted mainly to the educational or research activities of Edmonds ((Community)) College. Such signs, barricades, structures, markings, and directions shall be so made and placed as to be legible and in the opinion of the college president or ((his/her)) their designee will best effectuate the objectives stated in WAC 132Y-100-001.

[ 4 ] OTS-2051.5

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

WAC 132Y-100-084 Speed. No vehicle shall be operated on designated campus roadways or parking lots at a speed in excess of ten miles per hour, or the posted speed limit. No vehicle of any type shall at any time use the campus and/or lands devoted to educational, research, recreational, or parking for Edmonds ((Community)) College for ((testing, racing, or other)) any unlawful activities.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

- WAC 132Y-100-088 Pedestrian's right of way. (1) The operator of a vehicle shall yield to any pedestrian, but no pedestrian((s)) shall leave a curb or other place of safety and walk or run into the path of a vehicle which is so close that it is impossible or unsafe for the driver to yield.
- (2) Whenever any vehicle slows or stops so as to yield to pedestrian traffic, the operator of any other vehicle approaching from the rear shall not overtake and pass such vehicle.
- (3) Where a sidewalk is provided, pedestrians shall ((<del>proceed upon</del>)) <u>use</u> such sidewalk.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 81-17-042, filed 8/14/81)

WAC 132Y-100-092 Report of accident. The operator of any vehicle involved in an accident on campus shall within twenty-four hours report such accident to the campus security office. This does not relieve any person so involved in an accident from ((his)) their responsibility to file a ((state of Washington motor vehicle accident report)) State of Washington Vehicle Accident Report (SF137) within twenty-four hours after such accident.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

WAC 132Y-100-096 Special traffic/parking rules. During special occasions or emergencies, ((causing)) that cause additional and/or heavy traffic, the ((director of safety and security)) senior college security authority is authorized to impose additional traffic and parking regulations to achieve the specified objectives of this chapter.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

WAC 132Y-100-100 Enforcement of parking and traffic rules and regulations. ((The vice president of finance and operations is responsible for parking and traffic management on campus and delegates the authority to enforce the parking and traffic regulations to the director of safety and security.)) The senior college security authority, or their designee, is responsible for parking and traffic policies, procedures, and management of the same, on all college property, or college controlled properties.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

- WAC 132Y-100-106 Fines, penalties and impounding. (1) The current schedule of fines shall be published by the college and made available for review in the security office and is also available on the college's website at www.edcc.edu/safety.
- (2) In addition to imposing fines, the ((director of safety and security)) senior college security authority and duly appointed security officers are authorized to issue citations, impound, immobilize, and take to such place of storage as the ((director of safety and security)) senior college security authority selects, any vehicles parked on college property in violation of these regulations. The expenses of such impounding, immobilization, and storage shall be charged to the owner/operator of the vehicle and must be paid prior to the vehicle's release.
- (a) The college shall not be liable for loss or damage of any kind resulting from such impounding, immobilization, or storage.
- (b) Impoundment of a vehicle does not remove the obligation for any fines associated with the violation itself.
- (c) Vehicles left unattended on college property for ((a period greater than seventy-two hours)) longer than forty-eight hours may be impounded.
- (d) Grounds for impounding vehicles shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
  - (i) Blocking a roadway so as to impede the flow of traffic;
- (ii) Blocking a walkway so as to impede the flow of pedestrian traffic;
  - (iii) Blocking a fire hydrant or fire lane;
- (iv) Creating a safety hazard ((in the opinion of a campus security officer));
  - (v) Blocking another legally parked vehicle; or
- (vi) Parking in a marked (("tow-away" zone)) tow-away and/or load/unload zones.
- (3) All fines must be paid within twenty calendar days from the date of the citation. All fines are payable as designated on the citation.
- (a) If any citation remains unpaid after twenty calendar days from the date of the citation, the following action may be taken by Edmonds ((Community)) College:

- (i) ((Degrees, transcripts, grades, refunds, or credits may be withheld until all fines are paid;
  - (ii) Registration for the following quarter may be delayed;
- (iii))) Faculty, students, and staff may be denied future parking privileges.
- (ii) Students may be referred to student conduct for unpaid citations.
- (iii) Employees may be referred for discipline to supervisor and/or HR.
- (b) An accumulation of parking and/or traffic tickets that are not responded to <u>and resolved</u>, by payment or appeal, may be sent to collections after such notification is provided to the registered owner of the vehicle cited.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

WAC 132Y-100-108 Appeal of fines and penalties. Appeal of fines and penalties must be made in writing((, within five calendar days, to the director of safety and security department. The owner of the vehicle shall be entitled to a hearing with the director of the safety and security department or designee within two business days of any impoundment pursuant to WAC 132Y-100-106. The owner may recover the vehicle before hearing by posting a bond in the amount of the sum of any past due fines plus any fine due for the impoundment infraction plus impoundment cost. In the event that the owner is determined at hearing to be not liable for the impoundment infraction, the amount of the sum of the impoundment fine plus impoundment costs will be returned)) as outlined in college policy. College policies and procedures are available at www.edcc.edu/policies.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

WAC 132Y-100-114 Parking of trailers, campers, and similar purpose vehicles on campus. It is unlawful for any individual, firm or corporation to park any type of vehicle on the grounds of Edmonds ((Community)) College for the purpose of using such a vehicle as a living unit. Any exception must be submitted in writing and approved((, in writing,)) by the ((director of safety and security)) senior college security authority.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

WAC 132Y-100-115 Damage to state property. The cost of repair/replacement of college property damaged by negligent operations, or as

[ 7 ] OTS-2051.5

the result of indiscriminate  $\operatorname{acts}_{\mathcal{L}}$  must be paid in addition to assessed fines.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-16-039, filed 7/24/07, effective 8/24/07)

WAC 132Y-100-116 Prohibition of literature on vehicles. Distribution of literature by placement on motor vehicles parked on Edmonds ((Community)) College campus is hereby prohibited. Literature includes but is not limited to:

- (1) Pamphlets;
- (2) Flyers; and/or
- (3) Stickers.

## REPEALER

The following sections of the Washington Administrative Code are repealed:

WAG	C 132Y-100-006	Visitor parking.
WAG	C 132Y-100-014	Free parking by disabled persons.
WAG	C 132Y-100-020	Permit revocation.
WAG	C 132Y-100-044	Additional vehicles.
WAG	C 132Y-100-054	Parking—Operator's responsibility.
WAG	C 132Y-100-056	Parking within designated spaces.
WAG	C 132Y-100-060	Locating legal parking space.
WAG	C 132Y-100-064	Motorcycle parking.
WAG	C 132Y-100-067	Motorcycle parking.
WAG	C 132Y-100-068	Bicycle parking and traffic regulations.
WAG	C 132Y-100-070	Alternative transportation regulations.
WAG	C 132Y-100-082	Disabled or inoperative vehicles.